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1 From August 21, 1994 through November 12, 
2000, the Act was in lapse. During that period, the 
President, through Executive Order 12924, which 
had been extended by successive Presidential 
Notices, the last of which was August 3, 2000 (3 
CFR, 2000 Comp. 397 (2001)), continued the 
Regulations in effect under the International 
Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701–
1706 (2000)) (‘‘IEEPA’’). On November 13, 2000, the 
Act was reauthorized and it remained in effect 
through August 20, 2001. Since August 21, 2001, 
the Act has been in lapse and the President, through 
Executive Order 13222 of August 17, 2001 (3 CFR, 
2001 Comp. 783 (2002)), as extended by the Notice 
of August 7, 2003 (68 FR 47833, August 11, 2003)), 
has continued the Regulations in effect under 
IEEPA.

2 The Regulations are currently codified in the 
Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR parts 730–
774 (2003). The current version of the Regulations 
govern the procedural aspects of this case. The 
charged violations occurred in 1997. The 
Regulations governing the charged violations are 
found in the 1997 version of the Code of Federal 
Regulations (15 CFR parts 730–774 (1997)).

caused, induced, and permitted the 
submission of the SED’s containing 
these false statements. By so doing, 
Ralph Michel violated Section 764.2(b) 
of the Regulations. 

BIS and Ralph Michel having entered 
into a Settlement Agreement pursuant to 
Section 766.18(a) of the Regulations 
whereby they agreed to settle this matter 
in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth therein, and the 
terms of the Settlement Agreement 
having been approved by me; 

It is therefore ordered: 
First, that for a period of five years 

from the date of this Order, Ralph 
Michel, and when acting for or on 
behalf of him, his representatives, 
agents, assigns or employees (‘‘Denied 
Persons’’) may not, directly or 
indirectly, participate in any way in any 
transaction involving any commodity, 
software, or technology (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as ‘‘item’’) that is 
subject to the Regulations and that is 
exported or to be exported from the 
Untied States to Pakistan, or in any 
other activity subject to the Regulations 
that involves Pakistan, including, but 
not limited to: 

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using 
any license, License Exception, or 
export control document that involves 
export to Pakistan; 

B. Carrying on negotiations 
concerning, or ordering, buying, 
receiving, using, selling, delivering, 
storing, disposing of, forwarding, 
transporting, financing, or otherwise 
servicing in any way, any transaction 
involving any item that is subject to the 
Regulations and that is exported or to be 
exported from the United States to 
Pakistan, or in any other activity subject 
to the Regulations that involves 
Pakistan; or

C. Benefitting in any way from any 
transaction involving any item exported 
or to be exported from the United States 
to Pakistan that is subject to the 
Regulations, or in any other activity 
subject to the Regulations that involves 
Pakistan. 

Second, that no person may, directly 
or indirectly, do any of the following: 

A. Export or reexport to or on behalf 
of a Denied Person any item subject to 
the Regulations to Pakistan; 

B. Take any action that facilitates the 
acquisition or attempted acquisition by 
a Denied person of the ownership, 
possession, or control of any item 
subject to the Regulations that has been 
or will be exported from the United 
States to Pakistan, including financing 
or other support activities related to a 
transaction whereby a Denied Person 
acquires or attempts to acquire such 
ownership, possession or control; 

C. Take any action to acquire from or 
to facilitate the acquisition or attempted 
acquisition from a Denied Person of any 
item subject to the Regulations that has 
been exported from the United States to 
Pakistan; 

D. Obtain from a Denied Person in the 
United States any item subject to the 
Regulations with knowledge or reason 
to know that the item will be, or is 
intended to be, exported from the 
United States to Pakistan; or 

E. Engage in any transaction to service 
any item subject to the Regulations that 
has been or will be exported from the 
United States to Pakistan and that is 
owned, possessed or controlled by a 
Denied Person, or service any item, of 
whatever origin, that is owned, 
possessed or controlled by a Denied 
Person if such service involves the use 
of any item subject to the Regulations 
that has been or will be exported from 
the United States to Pakistan. For 
purposes of this paragraph, servicing 
means installation, maintenance, repair, 
modification or testing. 

Third, that after notice and 
opportunity for comment as provided in 
section 766.23 of the Regulations, any 
person, firm, cooperation, or business 
organization related to Ralph Michel by 
affiliation, ownership, control, or 
position of responsibility in the conduct 
of trade or related services may also be 
subject to the provisions of this Order. 

Fourth, that this Order does not 
prohibit any export, reexport, or other 
transaction subject to the regulations 
where the only items involved that are 
subject to the Regulations are the 
foreign-produced direct product of U.S.-
origin technology. 

Fifth, that the proposed charging 
letter, the Settlement Agreement, and 
this Order shall be made available to the 
public. 

This order, which constitutes the final 
agency action in this matter, is effective 
immediately.

Entered this 12th day of November 2003. 
Julie L. Myers, 
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Export 
Enforcement.
[FR Doc. 03–28795 Filed 11–17–03; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 3510–DT–M

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Bureau of Industry and Security 

Action Affecting Export Privileges; 
Omega Engineering, Inc.

In the Matter of: Omega Engineering, Inc., 
One Omega Drive, Stamford, Connecticut 
06907, Respondent.

Order 
The Bureau of Industry and Security, 

United States Department of Commerce 
(‘‘BIS’’), having notified Omega 
Engineering, Inc. (‘‘Omega’’) of its 
intention to initiate an administrative 
proceeding against it pursuant to section 
13(c) of the Export Administration Act 
of 1979, as amended (50 U.S.C. app. 
§§ 2401–2420 (2000) (‘‘Act’’),1 and the 
Export Administration Regulations 
(currently codified at 15 CFR parts 730–
774 (2003)) (‘‘Regulations’’),2 based on 
allegations in a proposed charging letter 
issued to Omega that alleged that Omega 
committed 17 violations of the 
Regulations. Specifically, the charges 
are:

1. Four Violations of § 764.2(a): 
Prohibited Conduct: Omega made a 
series of exports of laboratory 
equipment, including shipments on or 
about June 25, 1997, July 3, 1997, July 
11, 1997, and July 16, 1997, that were 
routed from the United States to 
Pakistan via Newport Electronics GmbH 
(Newport) in Germany. This laboratory 
equipment included load cells, load 
bolts, strain gauges and related parts. By 
that means, Omega, through its Vice 
President Ralph Michel (Michel), 
conducted or caused to be conducted 
the same export transaction for which 
the Department of Commerce had 
denied authorization in response to an 
export license application previously 
submitted by Omega. On or about April 
9, 1997, the Department of Commerce 
denied export license application 
Z097230, which Omega had submitted 
for the export of certain laboratory 
equipment from the United States to 
Pakistan. Omega appealed this denial 
pursuant to Section 756.2 of the 
Regulations. On or about May 5, 1997, 
the Under Secretary of Commerce for 
Export Administration sustained the 
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denial of the license application. In 
making the shipments on the dates 
specified above, Omega engaged in 
conduct prohibited by or contrary to the 
denial of export license application 
Z097230 and the Under Secretary’s 
upholding of that denial, thereby 
committing four violations of Section 
764.2(a) of the Regulations. 

2. Twelve Violations of 15 CFR 
764.2(g): False Statements: On or about 
June 25, July 3, July 11, and July 16, 
1997, Omega, through an employee, 
submitted or caused to be submitted a 
Shipper’s Export Declaration (SED) 
regarding one of the shipments 
described above. Michel knew that 
items ultimately destined for Pakistan 
were included in such shipments to 
Newport in Germany, and then were to 
be shipped from Germany to Pakistan. 
Each SED falsely identified Newport as 
the ultimate consignee and Germany as 
the country of ultimate destination. 
Each SED also stated that the export 
qualified for export pursuant to ‘‘NLR’’ 
(no license required), when in fact a 
license was required, as the Department 
of Commerce had previously advised 
Omega. By submitting or causing to be 
submitted these four SED’s, each of 
which contained these three false 
statements, Omega committed twelve 
violations of Section 764.2(g) of the 
Regulations. 

3. One Violation of 15 CFR 764.2(e): 
Acting With Knowledge of a Violation: 
In making or causing to be made the 
above-described exports, Omega, 
through Michel, acted with knowledge 
that such exports were prohibited by or 
contrary to the Department of 
Commerce’s denial of its export license 
application and the Under Secretary’s 
sustaining of that denial, as described 
above. By selling and transferring the 
items described above with knowledge 
that such violation was about to occur 
and was intended to occur in 
connection with the items, Omega 
violated Section 764.2(e) of the 
Regulations.

BIS and Omega having entered into a 
Settlement Agreement pursuant to 
Section 766.18(a) of the Regulations 
whereby they agreed to settle this matter 
in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth therein, and the 
terms of the Settlement Agreement 
having been approved by me; 

It Is Therefore Ordered: 
First, that Omega shall pay a civil 

penalty of $187,000 to the U.S. 
Department of Commerce, as follows: 
$87,000 to be paid within 30 days from 
the date of entry of the Order; $50,000 
to be paid within one year from the date 
of entry of the Order; and $50,000 to be 
paid within two years from the date of 

entry of the Order. At its option, Omega 
may accelerate this payment schedule. 
Payment shall be made in the manner 
specified in the attached instructions. 

Second, that, pursuant to the Debt 
Collection Act of 1982, as amended (31 
U.S.C. §§ 3701–3720E (1983 and Supp. 
2000)), the civil penalty owed under 
this Order accrues interest as more fully 
described in the attached Notice, and, if 
payment is not made by the due date 
specified herein, Omega will be 
assessed, in addition to the full amount 
of the civil penalty and interest, a 
penalty charge and an administrative 
charge, as more fully described in the 
attached Notice. 

Third, that the timely payment of the 
civil penalty set forth above is hereby 
made a condition to the granting, 
restoration, or continuing validity of any 
export license, license exception, 
permission, or privilege granted, or to be 
granted, to Omega. Accordingly, if 
Omega should fail to pay the civil 
penalty in a timely manner, the 
undersigned may enter an Order 
denying all of Omega’s export privileges 
for a period of one year from the date 
of entry of this Order. 

Fourth, that for a period of five years 
from the date of this Order, Omega 
Engineering, Inc., One Omega Drive, 
Stamford, Connecticut, 06907, its 
successors or assigns, and, when acting 
for or on behalf of Omega, its officers, 
representatives, agents or employees 
‘‘Denied Persons’’) may not, directly or 
indirectly, participate in any way in any 
transaction involving any commodity, 
software, or technology (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as ‘‘item’’) that is 
subject to the Regulations and that is 
exported or to be exported from the 
United States to Pakistan, or in any 
other activity subject to the Regulations 
that involves Pakistan, including, but 
not limited to: 

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using 
any license, License Exception, or 
export control document that involves 
export to Pakistan; 

B. Carrying on negotiations 
concerning, or ordering, buying, 
receiving, using, selling, delivering, 
storing, disposing of, forwarding, 
transporting, financing, or otherwise 
servicing in any way, any transaction 
involving any item that is subject to the 
Regulations and that is exported or to be 
exported from the United States to 
Pakistan, or in any other activity subject 
to the Regulations that involves 
Pakistan; or 

C. Benefitting in any way from any 
transaction involving any item exported 
or to be exported from the United States 
to Pakistan that is subject to the 
Regulations, or in any other activity 

subject to the Regulations that involves 
Pakistan.

Fifth, that no person may, directly or 
indirectly, do any of the actions 
described below with respect to an item 
that is subject to the Regulations and 
that has been, will be, or is intended to 
be exported or reexported to Pakistan: 

A. Export or reexport to or on behalf 
of a Denied Person any item subject to 
the Regulations to Pakistan; 

B. Take any action that facilitates the 
acquisition or attempted acquisition by 
a Denied Person of the ownership, 
possession, or control of any item 
subject to the Regulations that has been 
or will be exported from the United 
States to Pakistan, including financing 
or other support activities related to a 
transaction whereby a Denied Person 
acquires or attempts to acquire such 
ownership, possession or control; 

C. Take any action to acquire from or 
to facilitate the acquisition or attempted 
acquisition from a Denied Person of any 
item subject to the Regulations that has 
been exported from the United States to 
Pakistan; 

D. Obtain from a Denied Person in the 
United States any item subject to the 
Regulations with knowledge or reason 
to know that the item will be, or is 
intended to be, exported from the 
United States to Pakistan; or 

E. Engage in any transaction to service 
any item subject to the Regulations that 
has been or will be exported from the 
United States to Pakistan and that is 
owned, possessed or controlled by a 
Denied Person, or service any item, of 
whatever origin, that is owned, 
possessed or controlled by a Denied 
Person if such service involves the use 
of any item subject to the Regulations 
that has been or will be exported from 
the United States to Pakistan. For 
purposes of this paragraph, servicing 
means installation, maintenance, repair, 
modification or testing. 

Sixth, that after notice and 
opportunity for comment as provided in 
Section 766.23 of the Regulations, any 
person, firm, corporation, or business 
organization related to Omega by 
affiliation, ownership, control, or 
position of responsibility in the conduct 
of trade or related services may also be 
subject to the provisions of this Order. 

Seventh, that this Order does not 
prohibit any export, reexport, or other 
transaction subject to the Regulations 
where the only items involved that are 
subject to the Regulations are the 
foreign-produced direct product of U.S.-
origin technology. 

Eighth, that the proposed charging 
letter, the Settlement Agreement, and 
this Order shall be made available to the 
public. 
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This Order, which constitutes the 
final agency action in this matter, is 
effective immediately.

Entered this 12th day of November 2003. 
Julie L. Myers, 
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Export 
Enforcement.
[FR Doc. 03–28796 Filed 11–17–03; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 3510–DT–M

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

National Institute of Standards and 
Technology 

National Construction Safety Team 
Advisory Committee Meeting

AGENCY: National Institute of Standards 
and Technology, United States 
Department of Commerce.
ACTION: Notice of public meeting.

SUMMARY: The Director of the National 
Institute of Standards and Technology 
announces that the National 
Construction Safety Team Federal 
Advisory Committee will meet on 
December 2–3, 2003.
DATES: The meeting will convene on 
December 2, 2003, at 8 a.m. and will 
adjourn at 2 p.m. on December 3, 2003. 
Members of the public wishing to attend 
the meeting must notify Stephen 
Cauffman by close of business on 
Friday, November 28, 2003, per 
instructions under the SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION section of this notice.
ADDRESSES: The meeting will be held in 
Lecture Room A, Administration 
Building, at NIST, Gaithersburg, 
Maryland. Please note admittance 
instructions under SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION section of this notice.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Stephen Cauffman, National 
Construction Safety Team Advisory 
Committee, National Institute of 
Standards and Technology, 100 Bureau 
Drive, MS 8611, Gaithersburg, Maryland 
20899–8611, telephone (301) 975–6051, 
fax (301) 975–6122, or via e-mail at 
stephen.cauffman@nist.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In 
accordance with the requirements of the 
Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 
U.S.C. App. 2, notice is hereby given 
that the National Construction Safety 
Team (NCST) Advisory Committee 
(Committee), National Institute of 
Standards and Technology (NIST), will 
meet Tuesday, December 2, 2003, from 
8 a.m. to 6 p.m. and Wednesday, 
December 3, 2003, from 8 a.m. to 2 p.m. 
at NIST headquarters in Gaithersburg, 
Maryland. 

The Committee was established 
pursuant to Section 11 of the National 
Construction Safety Team Act (15 U.S.C. 
7310). The Committee is composed of 
ten members appointed by the Director 
of NIST who were selected for their 
technical expertise and experience, 
established records of distinguished 
professional service, and their 
knowledge of issues affecting teams 
established under the NCST Act. The 
Committee will advise the Director of 
NIST on carrying out investigations of 
building failures conducted under the 
authorities of the NCST Act that became 
law in October 2002 and will review the 
procedures developed to implement the 
NCST Act and reports issued under 
section 8 of the NCST Act. Background 
information on the NCST Act and 
information on the NCST Advisory 
Committee is available at http://
www.nist.gov/ncst. The purpose of this 
meeting is to discuss the requirements 
of the NCST Act, how it is being 
implemented by NIST, and to provide 
an update on the two investigations that 
NIST is currently conducting under the 
Act: the World Trade Center (WTC) 
Investigation and the Rhode Island 
Nightclub Investigation. The agenda 
will also include a discussion on the 
NCST Advisory Committee Annual 
Report to Congress. The agenda may 
change to accommodate Committee 
business. The final agenda will be 
posted on the Internet at http://
www.nist.gov/ncst. 

Individuals and representatives of 
organizations who would like to offer 
comments and suggestions related to the 
Committee’s affairs, NCST Act 
implementation, the WTC Investigation, 
or the Rhode Island Investigation are 
invited to request a place on the agenda. 
On December 2, 2003, approximately 
one hour will be reserved for public 
comments, and speaking times will be 
assigned on a first-come, first-served 
basis. The amount of time per speaker 
will be determined by the number of 
requests received, but is likely to be 5 
minutes each. Questions from the public 
will not be considered during this 
period. Speakers who wish to expand 
upon their oral statements, those who 
had wished to speak but could not be 
accommodated on the agenda, and those 
who were unable to attend in person are 
invited to submit written statements to 
the National Construction Safety Team 
Advisory Committee, National Institute 
of Standards and Technology, 100 
Bureau Drive, MS 8611, Gaithersburg, 
Maryland 20899–8611, via fax at (301) 
975–6122, or electronically via e-mail to 
ncstac@nist.gov. 

All visitors to the NIST site are 
required to pre-register to be admitted. 

Anyone wishing to attend this meeting 
must register by close of business 
Friday, November 28, 2003, in order to 
attend. Please submit your name, time 
of arrival, e-mail address and phone 
number to Stephen Cauffman and he 
will provide you with instructions for 
admittance. Non-U.S. citizens must also 
submit their country of citizenship, title, 
employer/sponsor, and address. Mr. 
Cauffman’s e-mail address is 
stephen.cauffman@nist.gov and his 
phone number is (301) 975–6051.

Dated: November 10, 2003. 
Arden L. Bement, Jr., 
Director.
[FR Doc. 03–28705 Filed 11–17–03; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 3510–13–P

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Office of the Secretary 

Proposed Collection; Comment 
Request

AGENCY: Defense Logistics Agency, DoD.
ACTION: Notice.

In compliance with section 
3506(c)(2)(A) of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995, the Defense 
Logistics Agency announces a proposed 
public information collection and seeks 
public comment on the provisions 
thereof. Comments are invited on: (a) 
Whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
agency, including whether the 
information shall have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the agency’s estimate 
of the burden of the proposed 
information collection; (c) ways to 
enhance the quality, utility, and clarity 
of the information to be collected; and 
(d) ways to minimize the burden of the 
information collection on respondents, 
including through the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology.
DATES: Consideration will be given to all 
comments received by January 20, 2004.
ADDRESSES: Written comments and 
recommendations on the proposed 
information collection should be sent to 
Defense Logistics Agency Headquarters, 
ATTN: Mr. David Beckner, J–3733, 8725 
John J. Kingman Drive, Ft. Belvoir, VA 
22060–6221.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: To 
request more information on this 
proposed information collection or to 
obtain a copy of the proposal and 
associated collection instruments, 
please write to the above address, or call 
J–3733 at (703) 767–3624. 

VerDate jul<14>2003 18:39 Nov 17, 2003 Jkt 203001 PO 00000 Frm 00011 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\18NON1.SGM 18NON1


		Superintendent of Documents
	2023-05-04T00:56:57-0400
	Government Publishing Office, Washington, DC 20401
	Government Publishing Office
	Government Publishing Office attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by Government Publishing Office




